
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before 
the meeting to the City Clerk, Joyce Donnell, at 541-937-2157. 

 

AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 2 , 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
Lowell City Hall, 107 East 3rd Street, Lowell, Oregon 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

2. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

4. SELECTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a. November 1, 2017 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Land Use File 2018-001 – Site Plan Review for Two Duplexes at Moss St & 4th Street 
• Public Hearing 
• Commission Deliberation 
• Commission Decision 

b. Land Use File 2018-02 – Variance & Property Line Adjustment at 188 E. 2nd Street 
• Public Hearing 
• Commission Deliberation 
• Commission Decision 

c. Discussion of 2018 Work Plan 
 

  8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. ADJOURN 



 

 
1 

City of Lowell, Oregon  
Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting 

November 1, 2017  
 
 
 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 PM by Commissioner Chair Bjornstad 
 
Members Present: Jerry Bjornstad, , Don Swain, Stacie Harris, Mary Wallace,   
 
Approval of Planning Commission Minutes: Commissioner Harris moved to approve 
minutes from Sept. 6, 2017, second by Commissioner Swain. PASS 4:0 
 
Old Business: 

• Discussion and Consideration of Business Registration Program – CA presented a 
draft of a Business Registration Program. Explaining: purpose, definitions, requirements 
and exemptions, and process for registration, renewal, compliance, violations and civil 
penalties. Discussion followed. Commissioner Harris move to present Business 
Registration Program as amended to City Council, second by Commissioner Swain.  
PASS 4:0 

 
New Business: 7:34 PM 

• Discussion of Planning Assistance Grant – CA reported we received a Planning 
Assistance Grant for $1,000, he anticipates using it to pay the Planner to assist in a code 
update in dealing with Marijuana Facilities.  

• Discussion and Consideration of Process to Update the Land Development Code -  
CA recommends applying for a Code Assistance project from the Oregon Transportation 
and Growth Management early next year.  Commissioner Harris move to recommend 
City Council to pursue the Code Assistance Grant for updating the Land 
Development Code, second by Commissioner Wallace. PASS 4:0 

• Discussion and Consideration of 2017 Annual Report – CA presented and discussed 
the Annual Report for City Council. Commissioner Bjornstad move to approve report 
be presented to City Council, second by Commissioner Harris.  PASS 4:0  

• Discussion of 2018 Work Plan – CA presented a review of 2017 work plan, discussion 
on plans for next year.  Commission will review and visit again next month. 

 
Other Business: Commissioner Wallace voiced her concern on the current code regarding Bee 
Keeping and would like it to be reviewed. 
 
Adjourn:  7:54 PM 



1 
 

 

Staff Report 
Site Plan Review Application,  

W. 4th Street LU 2018-01 
May 2, 2018 

 
1. Proposal. The Planning Commission is being asked to review and render a decision on an 

application for site plan review and approval for the development of two duplexes within the R-
3 Multiple-Family/Residential zone.  The application was submitted by property owner 
William George on March 23. The basic proposal is to build two duplexes on a single lot, 
which will contain 4 living units to rent on a vacant property located at the corner of Moss 
Street and 4th Street, on Assessor’s Map 19-01-14-22, Tax Lot 1606. 
 

2. Approval Criteria. LDC, Section 9.250, paragraph (a), establishes the decision process 
required for site plan review. An application for a site plan review may be approved by the City 
Administrator, but if the site or proposed buildings have unusual or special features the City 
Administrator may refer the application to Planning Commission for a decision, which triggers 
a quasi-judicial public hearing before the Planning Commission. The proposal of placing two 
duplexes on a single lot is reason why this application is referred to Planning Commission. 
Following public hearing and after evaluating the application against the decision criteria 
contained in LDC Section 9.250(b), 9.518, 9.520, and 9.610 the Planning Commission must 
adopt findings which approve, deny or conditionally approve the site plan review application 
and may attach any reasonable standards of development to attain compliance with the zoning 
district and the LDC 

 
3. Staff review of applicable criteria for site plan review LDC 9.250.  

 
(b) Decision Criteria. After an examination of the Site and prior to approval, the 
Planning Commission must make the following findings: 
 

(1) That the proposed development complies with the Zoning District standards. 
  

Discussion: Duplexes are a permitted use in the R-3 district. The particular development 
standards in the R-3 zone are as follows:  
 

(a) Minimum lot area – 7,000 square feet.  
 
Discussion: The lot area of the subject property is 12,196.8 square feet. Criterion met. 

 
(b) Minimum lot width - 60 feet, except for corner lots which must have no 

less than 65 feet on any property line adjoining a street.  
 



2 
 

 Discussion: The lot width of the subject property is 103.05 feet. Criterion met.  
 

(c) Minimum lot depth – 80 feet.  
 
Discussion: The lot depth of the subject property is 120.01 feet. Criterion met. 

 
(d) Maximum building coverage including accessory buildings – 40%, 

provided that any patio structure solely used for open space and 
swimming pool not structurally covered shall not be counted as a 
structure for ascertaining coverage.  

 
Discussion: The subject lot is 12,196.8 square feet, a 40% maximum lot coverage equates to 
4,878.72 square feet. Each duplex is 2,424 square feet for a total of 4, 848 square feet. The 
two proposed duplexes can meet the maximum building coverage. Criterion met.  

 
(e) Maximum building height – 3 stories or 45 feet, whichever is lower. 

Accessory buildings are limited to one story. For R-3 development within 
50 foot of an abutting R-1 district side or rear yard, R-1 height standards 
apply.  
 

Discussion: The building height for the proposed development is approximately 26 feet. 
Criterion met.  
 

(f) Front yard –  
(1) For streets with constructed or planned curbs and/or sidewalks, 20 
feet from the outside edge of the curb or sidewalk but no less than 10 
feet from the property line.  
(2)Where no curbs or sidewalks are constructed or planned, 15 feet, 
except all garages, carports or other parking structures taking access 
from the front of the property shall be set back 20 feet.  

 
Discussion: The front yard setback along Moss Street will be 30 feet or greater. Criterion    
met.  
 

(g) Side yard setbacks –  
 (1) Interior side yard: 5 feet and 7.5 feet for two story structures. 
 (2) Alley side yard: 5 feet  

(3) Street side yard: for streets with constructed or planned curbs 
and/or sidewalks, 15 feet from the outside edge of the curb or sidewalk 
but no less than 5 feet from the property line except for parking 
structures which shall be set back at least 20 feet from a curb or 



3 
 

sidewalk. Where no curbs or sidewalks are constructed or planned, 10 
feet, except all parking structures taking access from the side street 
shall be set back 20 feet.  
 

Discussion: The side yard setbacks will be 9 feet at the southern end of the property and 
7.5 at the northern end. The proposed sidewalk will be 15.5 feet from the edge of the 
sidewalk to the northern property line. The total side yard setback at the northern end of the 
property will be approximately 23 feet. The side yard setbacks may adjust slightly to allow 
for adequate space to place necessary utility lines, but will still meet the required setbacks. 
 
      (h) Rear yard: 10 feet. 
 
Discussion: The rear yard setback will be 40 feet. Criterion met.  
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: The proposed development on the subject 
property can comply with zoning district standards in the R-3 zone. Criterion met.  

 
(2) That the proposed development complies with applicable provisions of city 
codes and ordinances.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: The application and site plan submitted by the 
applicant demonstrates the proposed development can comply with applicable provisions 
of City codes and ordinances. Criterion met.  

 
(3) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to traffic flow 
or to pedestrian and vehicular safety and future street rights-of-way are protected.  
 

Discussion: The proposed development is similar to the existing developments north of the 
subject property in which there are currently five duplexes on five lots. The uses on the 
block of properties located to the northeast of the subject property are also zoned for multi-
family. The uses on the properties located easterly of the subject property are zoned for 
single family residential and currently consist of two single family homes, the Lowell Fire 
Station, and a public park. As part of the proposed development, the applicant will be 
required to install a pedestrian sidewalk along the north side of the subject property on 
West 4th Street. The existing wooden fence on the south end of the property will remain. 
The proposed development will have a 6-foot high chain link fence with privacy slats 
abutting Moss Street, expect for the front gates and cross fence; the chain link fence with 
privacy slats will be similar to the existing duplexes north of the subject property. Public 
notice was sent to property owners within 300-feet of the subject property; no public 
comments have been received. Subject to testimony to the contrary, a conclusion can be 
made the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to traffic flow or to 
pedestrian and vehicular safety, and future rights-of-way are protected.  



4 
 

 
Recommended FINDING for approval: Conditioned upon testimony to the contrary, the 
proposed development will not cause negative impacts to traffic flow or to pedestrian and 
vehicular safety and future street rights-of-way are protected. Criterion met.  

 
(4) That proposed signs or lighting will not, by size, location or color, interfere with 
traffic, limit visibility or impact on adjacent properties.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: The proposed development does not contain any 
proposed signs or lighting that will interfere with traffic, limit visibility or impact on 
adjacent properties. Criterion met. 

 
(5) That proposed utility connections are available, have the capacity to serve the 
proposed development and can be extended in the future to accommodate future 
growth beyond the proposed land division.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: Per the applicant’s supplemental materials 
submitted on April 11, 2018, all connections are in place. Criterion met.  

 
(6) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts to existing or 
proposed drainage ways including flow disruptions, flooding, contamination or 
erosion.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: Conditioned upon testimony to the contrary, the 
proposed development will not cause negative impacts to existing or proposed drainage 
ways including flow disruptions, flooding, contamination or erosion. Criterion met.  

 
(7) That the proposed development will not cause negative impacts, potential 
hazards or nuisance characteristics as identified in Section 2.140, Item 21 of the 
Application Site Plan consistent with the standards of the Zoning District and 
complies with the applicable standards of all regulatory agencies having 
jurisdiction.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: Conditioned upon testimony to the contrary, the 
proposed development will not cause negative impacts, potential hazards or nuisance 
characteristics. Criterion met.  

 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

4.  Staff review of applicable criteria for sidewalks 
 

LDC 9.518. Public sidewalk improvements are required for all land divisions and 
property development in the City of Lowell. Sidewalks may be deferred by the City 
where future road or utility improvements will occur and on property in the rural fringe 
of the City where urban construction standards have not yet occurred. The property 
owner is obligated to provide the sidewalk when requested by the City or is obligated to 
pay their fair share if sidewalks are installed by the City at a later date. An irrevocable 
Waiver of Remonstrance shall be recorded with the property to guarantee compliance 
with this requirement.  
 

(a) Sidewalks shall be constructed within the street right-of-way. Sidewalk 
easements shall only be accepted where the City determines that full right-of-way 
acquisition is impractical.  
 
(b) Sidewalks shall connect to and align with existing sidewalks. Sidewalks may 
transition to another alignment as part of the approval process.  
 
(c) The City may approve alternate sidewalk alignments and widths to 
accommodate obstructions that cannot be altered.  
 
(d) Sidewalks in residential areas shall be a minimum of five (5) feet in width and 
shall be installed adjacent to the curb unless a planter strip of at least four (4) feet 
in width is approved adjacent to the curb where sufficient right-of-way is available.  
 
(e) Sidewalks adjacent to Major Collector or Arterial Streets are required and shall 
be a minimum of five (5) feet in width separated by a planter strip of five (5) feet in 
width adjacent to the curb. Sidewalks may be approved adjacent to the curb where 
direct access is required. Sidewalks adjacent to the curb shall be a minimum of 
seven (7) feet in width or a minimum of ten (10) feet in width adjacent to 
Commercial properties. Planter openings adjacent to the curb are encouraged 
within the ten (10) foot wide walks.  
 
(f) Planter strips and the remaining right-of-way shall be landscaped and 
incorporated as part of the front yard or adjacent property. 
 
(g) Mid-block Sidewalks. The City may require mid-block sidewalks for long blocks 
or to provide access to schools, parks, shopping centers, public transportation 
stops, or other community services. Mid-block sidewalks shall be raised and shall 
be 6 feet in width.  
 
(h) Internal pedestrian circulation shall be provided within new office parks and 



6 
 

commercial developments by clustering buildings and construction of accessways.  
  

Discussion: As a condition of approval, the applicant shall install a pedestrian sidewalk 
along the north end of the subject property on West 4th Street. Applicant is responsible for 
obtaining all necessary permits, and costs associated with installation of sidewalk. The 
proposed sidewalk shall be constructed to the applicable standards and criteria set forth at 
LDC 9.518 and Standards for Public Improvements.  

 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL #1:  As a condition of approval, and prior to 
final inspection by the city engineer or appropriate authority as determined by 
the City Administrator, applicant shall install a pedestrian sidewalk at the north 
end of the subject property on West 4th Street. Applicant shall be responsible for 
obtaining all necessary permits, and costs associated with the installation of the 
sidewalk. Sidewalk shall be inspected, and approved by the city engineer or 
appropriate authority as determined by the City Administrator of the City of 
Lowell.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: As conditioned, the proposed development can 
comply with the standards in LDC 9.518. Criterion met.  

 
5.  Staff review of applicable criteria for storm drainage  
 

LCD 9.520. Until completion of a Storm Drainage Master Plan for the City of Lowell, 
Section IV, of the Standards for Public Improvements and the following shall apply. In 
the event of a conflict, the following takes precedence.  
 
(a) General Provisions. It is the obligation of the property owner to provide proper 
drainage and protect all runoff and drainage ways from disruption or contamination. 
On-site and off-site drainage improvements may be required. Property owners shall 
provide proper drainage and shall not direct drainage across another property except as 
a part of an approved drainage plan. Paving, roof drains and other catch basin 
outflows may require detention ponds or cells and discharge permits. Maintaining 
proper drainage is a continuing obligation of the property owner. The City will approve 
a development request only where adequate provisions for storm and flood water run-
off have been made as determined by the City. The storm water drainage system must 
be separate and independent of any sanitary sewerage system. Inlets should be provided 
so surface water is not carried across any intersection or allowed to flood any street. 
Surface water drainage patterns and proposed storm drainage must be shown on every 
development plan submitted for approval. All proposed drainage systems must be 
approved by the City as part of the review and approval process.  
 
 
 



7 
 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL #2: As a condition of approval, and prior to 
issuance of building permits, applicant shall submit a drainage system plan for 
review, and approval, by the city engineer or appropriate authority as 
determined by the City Administrator.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: As conditioned, the proposed development can 
comply with the standards in LDC 9.520. Criterion met.  

 
 
6. Staff review of applicable criteria for wetland development standards 
 

LDC 9.610. Wetlands are defined as those areas that are inundated or saturated often 
enough to support a prevalence of vegetation adapted for life in standing water or 
saturated soil. Wetlands include swamps, bogs, marshes and similar areas.  
 
(a) Regulation. Development within wetlands is prohibited unless replacement or 
enhancement mitigation is accepted by the regulatory agencies. The Oregon Division of 
State Lands (DSL) is the coordinating agency for wetland permits. The US Army Corp 
of Engineers (Corps) is the federal regulatory agency administering Section 404 of the 
National Clean Waters Act. There are also other state and federal coordinating 
agencies including DLCD. 
(b) Notice. ORS 227.350 specifies that cities shall provide notice of proposed wetlands 
development to the Division of State Lands (DSL). The City shall provide notice to the 
DSL, the applicant and the owner of record, within 5 working days of the acceptance of 
any complete application for the following activities that are wholly or partially within 
areas identified as wetlands on the State-wide Inventory of Wetlands or have been 
identified in any known wetlands study as possibly containing wetlands. 

  
(1)  Subdivision; 
(2)  Building permits for new structures; 
(3)  Other development permits and approvals that allow physical alteration to 

the land involving excavation and grading, including permits for removal or 
fill, or both; 

(4)  Conditional use permits and variances that involve physical alterations to 
the land or construction of new structures; and 

(5)  Planned unit development approvals.  
 

(c) The provisions of Section 9.610(b) do not apply if a permit from DSL has been 
issued for the proposed activity.  
 
(d) Approval of any activity described in Section 9.610(b) shall include one of the 
following notice statements: 

 
(1)  Issuance of a permit under ORS 196.600 to 196.905 by DSL is required for 

the project before any physical alteration takes place within the wetlands; 
(2)  Notice from DSL that no permit is required; or 



8 
 

(3)  Notice from DSL that no permit is required until specific proposals to 
remove, fill or alter the wetland are submitted.  

 
(e) If DSL fails to respond to any notice provided under Subsection (2) of this section 
within 30 days of notice, the City approval may be issued with written notice to the 
applicant and the owner of record that the proposed action may require state or federal 
permits. 
 
(f) The City may issue local approval for parcels identified as having potential wetlands 
on the State-wide Wetlands Inventory upon providing to the applicant and the owner of 
record of the affected parcel a written notice of the possible presence of wetlands and 
the potential need for state and federal permits. The City will provide DSL with a copy 
of the notification together with a map showing the property location. 
 
(g) Notice of activities authorized within an approved wetland conservation plan shall 
be provided to the division within five days following local approval. 
 
(h) Failure by the City to provide notice as required in this section will not invalidate 
City approval. 
 
(i) Development Standards: 

 
(1)  No building permits shall be shall be issued within designated wetlands 

unless a permit has been acquired from DSL and any other regulatory 
agency having jurisdiction or documentation is provided indicating that no 
permit is required. 

 
(2)  The City of Lowell shall not provide water and sewer service to any new 

structures or development which would encroach upon or adversely affect 
any designated wetlands within the Lowell City Limits or Urban Growth 
Boundary until the requirements of any permit are met. In the event that 
that water and sewer service are required before permit conditions such as 
mitigation, are accepted by the permitting agency, such service will only be 
provided on the condition that if permit conditions are not met, service will 
be terminated. 

  
Discussion: Per the Lowell Local Wetland Inventory Map completed in 2011. The subject 
property is identified as containing a probable wetland. A wetland determination was 
conducted at the subject property by a representative from DSL on April 17. It was 
determined the subject property contains a wetland, and a wetland delineation report be 
conducted and submitted to DSL for approval to build within the wetland. A Wetland Land 
Use Notification has been submitted to DSL for review.  

 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL #3: As a condition of approval, and prior to 
issuance of building permits, applicant shall obtain all necessary permits for 
approval to build in an identified wetland. No building activity or disturbance of 
soil shall occur on the subject property until all permits are obtained, and 



9 
 

conditions as imposed by DSL or other regulatory agencies are complied with.  
 

Recommended FINDING for approval: As conditioned, the proposed development can 
comply with LDC 9.610. Criterion met.  
 
7.  Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission APPROVE a site plan review as 
conditioned, for the proposed development of two duplexes on a single lot in the R-3 
zone.  
 
 
8.  Attachments 
 
Attachment A: Applicant’s application 
Attachment B: Supplemental materials submitted by applicant 
Attachment C: Notice  



clid1710
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A





























clid1710
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B







   

CITY OF LOWELL 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Mailing Date 4/12/2018 
 

Notice is hereby given for a Public Hearing by the Lowell Planning Commission for a Site Plan 
Review for a proposed four-unit residential development located at the southwest corner of Moss 
Street and Fourth Street. 
 
The Hearing will occur on May 2, 2018 at 7:00 pm in the Lowell City Hall located at 107 
East Third Street. 
  
Requested Action:  Site Plan Review for a proposed four-unit residential development on 
property located at the southwest corner of Moss Street and Fourth Street. 
 

Owner/Applicant: William and Ruth George  
Property Location SW Corner of Moss Street and Fourth Street 
Assessor Map: 190114220 
Tax Lot: 1606 
Existing Area: 0.28 acres 
Existing Zone: R-3 Multi-Family Residential 

 
The Lowell Land Use Development Code specifies the applicable procedures and criteria for 
evaluation of the requested action.  Applicable Code Sections include Code Section 9.412 Multi-
Family Residential, Code Section 9.250 Site Plan Review, Code Section 9.304 Notification and 
Code Section 9.305 Limited Land Use Review Procedures. The specific criteria will be addressed 
in the Staff Report. 
 
A copy of the Application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the Applicant and the Staff 
Report containing the applicable criteria will be available for inspection at the Lowell City Hall 
at least seven days prior to the public hearing meeting. 
 
Failure of an issue to be raised in the Hearing or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient detail to 
afford the decision makers an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land 
Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) on that issue. 
 
A Site Plan Review requires a Public Hearing. Oral testimony may be presented at the 
Hearing or written testimony may be delivered or mailed to the Lowell City Hall located at 
107 East Third Street, Lowell, Oregon 97452 or emailed to Jared Cobb, City 
Administrator, at jcobb@ci.lowell.or.us. 
 
Written Testimony shall be received by the City no later than 4:00 pm on April 30, 2018. 
 
For additional information please write to City Hall at the above address or call City Hall 
at (541) 937-2157 or fax to 541-937-2066. 
 
 
Jared Cobb 
City Administrator 
City of Lowell 
 

mailto:jcobb@ci.lowell.or.us
clid1710
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



 
 

1 
 

 

Staff Report 
Variance & Property Line Adjustment Application,  

188 E. 2nd Street  
LU 2018-02 

Staff Report Date: May 2, 2018 
 
1.   Proposal. The Planning Commission is being asked to review and render a decision on two 

concurrent and related land use actions: a variance and property line adjustment. The 
applicant owns two abutting properties known as Lot 1 and Lot 2 in Block 6 of the Plat of 
Lowell. An application for a variance to the 7,000 sq. ft. minimum lot area requirement 
within the R-1 Single Family Dwelling zone, and property line adjustment was submitted by 
property owner Jared Cobb. The property line adjustment is proposed so that the existing 
structure on the unit of land that’s increased in size will be in compliance with residential lot 
standards. Mr. Cobb is requesting that a variance be approved to allow a lot that is 6,000 
square feet, and a property line adjustment be approved in order to comply with residential 
lot standards of the Lowell Land Development Code (LDC).  

 
2.   Approval Criteria. LDC, Section 9.252, paragraph (a), establishes the decision process 

required for variances. An application for a variance requires a quasi-judicial public hearing 
before the Planning Commission. Following public hearing and after evaluating the 
application against the decision criteria contained in LDC Section 9.252(b), the Planning 
Commission must adopt findings which approve, deny or conditionally approve the 
variance application and may attach any reasonable standards of development to attain 
compliance with the zoning district and the LDC. 

 
  LDC, Section 9.214 establishes the decision process required for property line adjustments. 

A property line adjustment does not require a Limited Land Use Decision or Notifications. 
The City Administrator may consider a property line adjustment at any time following the 
submittal of the application. This application requires a variance and the establishment of an 
easement, thus it is being placed before the Planning Commission which shall hold a quasi-
judicial public hearing.  

 
4.  Staff review of applicable criteria for property line adjustment  
 
  LDC 2.212.  All property line adjustments requests shall contain the following information:  
 

 (a) The property to be adjusted shall comply with ORS 92 for Property Line Adjustments.  
  (b) A map clearly and legibly drawn to scale with the scale indicated. 
  (c) The title “Property Line Adjustment for…,” the date and northpoint. 
  (d) Name and address of the record owner(s) of the property to be adjusted.  

(e) Assessor Map and Tax Lot numbers and approximate acreage or square feet of each 
property prior to and after adjustment. 
(f) The location and boundary dimensions and other information to accurately locate the 
adjusted property line. 
(g) Existing conditions for land within the properties to be adjusted: 



 
 

2 
 

 
 (1) The locations, names and width of existing streets.  
 (2) The location, width and purpose of existing or proposed easements. 

(3) The approximate location of buildings, public and private utilities, drainage 
ways and other significant features that would affect development of the adjusted 
properties.  

  
Discussion: The preliminary property line adjustment plat submitted by the applicant contains 
the necessary information required. The applicant has submitted supplemental materials 
indicating there is a proposed easement on the south side of the property which would allow 
for the relocation of the existing sanitary sewer line which currently runs from the southwest 
corner of the home to the 20 -foot alley on the west side of the property. Criteria met.  
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: The preliminary property line adjustment, and 
supplemental materials, submitted by the applicant contains the necessary information 
required. Criterion met.  

 
LDC 9.213. A Property Line Adjustment may be approved based upon   compliance with the 
submittal requirements specified above and the following findings:  

 
(a) The adjustment will not create an additional unit of land. 
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: As indicated on the preliminary property line 
adjustment plat, the adjustment will not create an additional unit of land. Criterion met.  
 
(b) The adjustment will not create a land-locked parcel.  
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: As indicated on the preliminary property line 
adjustment plat, the adjustment will not create a land-locked parcel. Criterion met.  
 
(c) The existing unit of land reduced in size by the adjustment complies with applicable 
City Ordinances and this Code and will not create a non-conforming lot or non-
conforming development.  
 
Discussion: As indicated on the preliminary property line adjustment plat, the adjustment 
will create a parcel that does not meet the minimum lot size requirements in the R-1 zone. To 
rectify this issue, the applicant has submitted a variance request in conjunction with the 
proposed property line adjustment.  
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: The unit of land reduced in size can comply with 
applicable City Ordinances and this Code with approval of the proposed variance included in 
this staff report. Criterion met.  

 
 
 
 
 

(d) The adjustment shall comply with any previous Conditions of Approval attached to the 



 
 

3 
 

properties to be adjusted.  
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: No previous conditions of approval have been 
found related to the subject property. Criterion met.  
 
(e) The adjustment shall comply with all state and county recording requirements.  
 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL #1: The final property line adjustment survey shall conform 
to ORS 92, and all state and county recording requirements.  

 
Recommended FINDING for approval: As a condition of approval, the final property line 
adjustment shall conform to ORS 92, and all state and county recording requirements. 
Criterion conditionally met.  
 

6.  Staff review of applicable criteria for variance  
 

LDC 9.525. (b) Decision Criteria. A variance may be granted in the event that all of the 
following circumstances exist: 
 
  (1) That there are circumstances or conditions affecting the property or use.  
 

Discussion: The residential structure on Lot 1 does not meet the sideyard setback standard 
contained in the residential lot standards of the LDC. In addition, the accessory structure 
associated with the primary structure located on Lot 1, is located on the abutting Lot 2. Per 
LDC 9.190, an accessory structure or accessory is defined as a use that is subordinate to the 
main use of the property, and located on the same lot as the main use. The applicant is 
proposing a property line adjustment to be in compliance with sideyard setbacks and locating 
the residential structure and accessory structure on the same lot. As a result of the proposed 
property line adjustment, the area of the adjusted boundaries of one of the properties is 
reduced to 6,000 square feet, which falls below the 7,000 square foot minimum required for 
residentially zoned property as specified in LDC. Because of this condition the applicant is 
requesting a variance to the lot size standards.  

 
Recommended FINDING for approval: In order to meet sideyard setbacks, and placement 
of the primary structure, and accessory structure on the same lot, a property line adjustment 
must be completed in conjunction with a variance to the required 7,000 square foot lot size 
standards. Criterion met.  

 
(2) That the variance is necessary for the proper design and/or function of the proposed 
development or land division.  
 
Discussion: The granting of a variance to the 7,000 square foot minimum lot size on Lot 1 
would bring Lot 2 into proper design and into compliance with LDC with respect to sideyard 
setbacks and the placement of the primary structure and accessory structure on the same lot.  
 
 
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: A variance to the 7,000 square foot minimum lot 



 
 

4 
 

size on Lot 1 is necessary for Lot 2 to be in compliance with sideyard setbacks and the 
placement of the primary structure and accessory structure on the same lot. Criterion met.  
 
(3) That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or 
injurious to other property in the area in which the property is situated.  
 
Discussion: The granting of the proposed variance will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare. The only possible injury to other property would be on Lot 1 which would now have 
a minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet, and per LDC 9.252 (5) all future building permit or 
land divisions shall conform to the approved variance. The proposed property line adjustment 
and variance only involve the properties owned by Mr. Cobb. The subject lots are zoned 
residential and will continue to be used as residential lots. The City of Lowell has an 
established precedent for allowing variances to lot size (LU 05-009). 
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: Conditioned upon testimony to the contrary, the 
granting of the proposed variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 
other property. Criterion met.  
 
(4) That the granting of the variance will not conflict with the purpose and intent of the 
district or zone, this Code, or other related ordinances of the City.  
 
Discussion: The granting of the proposed variance will not conflict with the purpose or intent 
of the district, or any other city ordinances. The granting of a variance will remove anon-
conformity within the R-1 zone and bring Lot 2 of the subject properties into compliance 
with sideyard setbacks and proper placement of the primary structure and accessory structure 
on the same lot. Both Lot 1 and Lot 2 are zoned for residential use and will continue to be 
used for residential purposes after the proposed property line adjustment is complete, thereby 
maintaining the purpose and intent of the residential zone in which the property is located.  
 
Recommended FINDING for approval: The granting of the proposed variance will not 
conflict with the purpose and intent of the district of the zone, this Code, or other related 
ordinances of the City. Criterion met.  

 
7.   Recommendation 

 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission APPROVE, in conjunction, a property line 
adjustment, and a variance request to the 7,000 square foot lot minimum in the R-1 zone, and 
permit a 6,000 square foot lot minimum as seen on the preliminary property line adjustment 
plat submitted by the applicant.  
 

   8.  Attachments 
 
    Attachment A:  Applicant’s application 
    Attachment B:  Supplemental materials submitted by applicant 
    Attachment C:  Notice  



clid1710
Typewritten Text

clid1710
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

















clid1710
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B





clid1710
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



Planning Commission 
2018 Work Plan 

 
 

Develop and recommend design standards for street lighting. 
 

 

 

Develop an update to the Land Development Code regarding conditions for 
marijuana facilities. 
 

 

 

Research policies and programs that encourage neighborhood reinvestment and 
provide recommendations to the City Council for review. 
 

 

 


	050218 Planning Commission Agenda
	11012017 Planning Commission Meeting
	Final_Staff_Report_George_April_24
	George_Attachments
	AttachmentA
	AttachmentB1
	MX-3570N_20180412_182531
	MX-3570N_20180412_182552
	MX-3570N_20180412_182729

	AttachmentC

	Cobb_Planning_Commission_Packet_2May
	Final_Staff_Report_Cobb
	AttachmentA
	LU 2018-02
	LU 2018-02_signed

	AttachmentB_new_survey
	AttachmentB
	Survey_with_easement

	AttachmentC

	2018 Work Plan



